UNITED STATES FILED

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY g you1 24 it 13 59
REGION 6 - L

DALLAS, TEXAS

IN THE MATTER QF: Docket No. CWA-06-2011-2709

§

§

Mr. Henry R. Stevenson, Jr. §

Parkwood Land Co. § COMPLAINANT’S SUPPLEMENT TO
§ PREHEARING EXCHANGE

Respondent §

§

COMPLAINANT’S SUPPLEMENT TO INITIAL PREHEARING EXCHANGE

The Complainant, the Director of the Water Quality Protection Division, United States
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 6, through its attorney, hereby files its Supplement to
Initial Prchearing Hxchange pursuant to the Scheduling Order, dated November 22, 2011, issucd
by the Presiding Officer and pursuant 1o the Consolidaled Rules of Practice Governing the
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation or Suspension of Permits, 40
C.F.R. Part 22. In the Order, the Presiding Officer instructed the Partlies to file a Prehearing
Exchange contaiming specific information. This document contains Complainant’s supplemental
responses to the Presiding Officer’s Order. During the lanuary 24, 2012 prehearing conference,
Complainant expressed its intent to file this supplement to its initial Prehearing Exchange and
Respondent had no objection. Complainant’s initial Prehearing Exchange is incorporated by
reference.

A, WITNESSES:

The Complainant offers no chahgcs 10 its initial Prehearing Exchange with regard to
wilnesses.

B. EXHIBITS:

The Complainant may offer into evidence the following supplemental exhibits:
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EXHIBIT NO. DESCRIPTION
Complainant’s Ex. 40 Clean Water Act Section 404 Settlement Penalty Policy
Complainant’s Ex. 41 Electronic compact disc containing digital color copies of

the photographs contained in Complainant’s Iixhibits 6-29,
33-35
The Complainant respectfully reserves the right to amend its prehearing exchange to add
or subtract exhibits and/or documents.
C. PLACE FOR HEARING AND ESTIMATED TIME NEEDED:
Complainant neither changes its requested place for hearing nor its estimate of time
needed.
D. ASSESSMENT OF CIVIL PENALTY:
The Complainant offers no changes to its initial Prehearing Exchange with regard to its
asscssment of a civil penalty.
E. PAPERWORK REDUCTTON ACT APPLICABILITY
- The Paperwork Reduction Act of 1980 (PRA), 44 U.S.C. §§ 3501 et seg. as amended,
does not apply in this case. Also, there is not an Office of Management and Budget Control

Number herein and the Provisions of Section 3512 of the PRA are not applicable.
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Respectfully submitted,

i /
Ve
Russell Murdock

Assistant Regional Counsel (6RC-EW)
Office of Regional Counsel

U.S. EPA, Region 6

1445 Ross Ave., Ste. 1200

Dallas, TX 75202-2733
Murdock.russell@epa.gov

Tel.: (214) 665-3189

Fax.: (214) 665-3177
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that the original of the foregoing Complainant’s Prehearing Exchange was hand-
delivered to and filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency,
Region 6, 1445 Ross Avenue, Dallas, Texas 75202-2733, and a true and correct copy was sent to

7y TP
the following on this 725’ day of January, 2012, in the following manner:

Via Certified, First Class Mail

Charles (Chuck) Kibler, Jr.

The Kibler Law Firm
765 N. 5" Street
' (It d ., b . o € ) ‘
/)'AL/&{Z - \/ (t_?’-‘f. {-‘-I_/, 24 (7 (x_'
- (/ /

Silsbee, TX 77656
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
WASHINGTON, DNC. 20480

DEC 2 1 200! CFFICE OF

ENFORCEMENT AND
COMPLIANGE ASSURANCE

MEMORANDTUM

SUBJECT: 1Is ace of Revised CWA Section 404 Settlement Penalty

FROM: . wrafice
Acting As#tstaht Administrator
TO: Water Protection/Management Division Directors,

Regieons I-X

Director, Office of Environmental Stewardship, Region I
Director, Division of Environmental Protection and
Planning, Region II

Enforcement and Compliance Assistance Directors,
Regions 1I, VI, and VIII

Water, Wetlands, and Pesticides Divisien Director,
Region VII :

Regional Counsels, Regions I-X

Attached is the Agency’'s new Clean Water Act Section 404
Settlement Penalty Policy. Thisg Policy iz intended to be used by
EPA in calculating the penalty that the Federal government wilil
generally seek in settlement of judicial and administrative
actiong for Section 404 viclationms (i.e., wviolations resulting
from the discharge of dredged or fill material into wetlands or
other waters of the United States without Section 404 permit
anthorization, or in vieclation of a Sectign 4C4 permit.) This
policy establishes a framework which EPA expects to use in
exerciping ites enforcement discretion in debermining appropriate
gettlement amounts for such cases.

This guidance is intended to promote a more consistent
national approach to agsessing gettlement penalty amounts in CWA
Section 404 enforcement actions, while allowing BEPA staff
flexibility in arriving at speciflc penalty settlement amounts in

intemet Address (URL) » hitpifwww.epa.gav
ReaycledMacyolablo « Printed wih Vegalable O3 Basad Irke on Recycled Pager (Minlmun 30% Postconsumer)
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a given case. This policy is effective immediately and
supersedes Lhe December 14, 1%20 Guidance, “Clean Water Act
Section 404 Civil Administrative Penalty Acticns: Guidance on
Caleculating Settlement Amounts.” This policy applies to all WA
Section 404 civil judicial and administrative acticong filed after
thia date, and to all pending cases in which the government has
not yet transmitted to the defendant or respondent a proposed
setblement penalty amount. This policy may be applied in pending
cases in which penalty negotiationsg have commenced, if
application of thig Policy would not be digruptive to the
negotiations,

Wwe would like to taks this opportunity to thank all those in
the Regions, the Office of General Counsel, and Department of
Justice who commented on drafts of this policy. Your comments
were very helpful in making this a more complete and useful
document . :

If vou have guestionz or comments with respect to tails
Folicy please contact Joe Theis in the Water Enforcement Divigion
at (202)564-0024,

Attachment
cc:  Susan Lepow, QGC

Leti Grishaw, DOJ-EDS
Mary Beth Ward, DOJ-EDS
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CLEAN WATER ACT SECTION 404
SETTLEMENT PENALTY POLICY
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Complainant's Ex. 40

CLEAN WATER ACT SECTION 404
SETTLEMENT PENALTY POLICY

L INTRODUCTION

This document sets forth the policy of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA” or
“Agency”) for establishing appropriate penalties i seftlement of an administrative or civil judicial penalty
proceeding against a person who has violated Sections 301 and 404 of the Clean Water Act-(“CWA”
or “Ac™)! by discharging dredged or fill material into wetlands or other waters of the United States
without Section 404 permit authorization, or in violation of a Section 404 permit? This policy
implements the Agency’s Policy on Civil Penalties and the companion document, 4 Framework for
Starute Specific Approaches (o Penalty Assessments, both issued on February 16, 1984, with
respect to these types of violations. This settlément perialty policy should be read in conjunction with
other applicable policies, such as the Mterim Guidance on Administrative and Civil Judicial
Enforcement Following Recent Amendments 1o the Equal Access to Justice Act (SBREFA Policy)
(May 28, 1996), [ncentives for Self-Policing. Discovery, Disclosure, Correction and Prevention
of Vielations (EPA Audit Policy) (April 11, 2000}, and the £PA4 Supplemental Lnvironmental
Projects Policy (SEP Policy) (May t, 1998).

EPA brings enforcement actions 1o require afleged viclators to promptly comrect their violations
and to remedy any harm caused by those violations.> As part of an enforcement action, EPA also
seeks substanial monetary penaltics, that recover the econemic benefit of the vielations plus an
appropriste gravity amount that will deter future violations by the sanie violator and by other members
of the regulated community, Penalties help to ensure a level playing field within the regulated community

D338 8 13 a), 33 ULS.CLE 1344,

?EPA may currently seek civii penallies up (o $27,500 per day per violation in the federul district courts
under Section 309{d), or may seek an administrative assessmenl of $11,000 per day of vioiation up 1o $137,500 before
an Agency adminisirative law judge under Section 309(g) for the unavthorized discharpe of dredged or §ill material
into waters of 1he Uniled Stales, or violation ol a Section 404 permit, 33 U.S.CL § 1319(d) and {p). These lgures
refiect a (0% increase from the amounts set forth in (the CWA as provided for under the Civil Manetary Penalties
Adjustment Rule. The Agency is preparing to issue a revision 1o the Civit Monetary Penallivs Adjustment Rule in
the near future. See Mmotnote 10 below for further discussion,

3 For 1 ¢iscussion of the policy and procedures regarding EPA and Army Corps of Engineers {"Corps™)
implementation of Seetion 404 enforcement responsibilities gee "Memorandum of Agreement Between the
Department ol the Army/Environmental Protection Agency Concerning Federal Enforcement for the Seetion 404
Program of the Clean Water Act” (January 19, 1989). This docwntent is available en the Internet at:
lihtpoffwww epa. gow/ OWO W Awellinds/reps/enfmou. him,

-2



Complainant's Ex. 40

by ensuring that violators do not obtain an unfair econormic advantage over competitors who have
complied with the Act. At the same time, EPA’s policies provide for adjustments based on a violator's
good faith efforts to comply (or lack thereof) and inability 0 pay a penaity.

The need to deter violations and remedy any harm caused by such violations is especially
evident with respect to the-discharge of dredged and/or fill material into waters of the U.S., particularly
wetlands and other special aquatic sites,* Wetlands are a vital yet increasingly threatened natural
resource.’ Wetlands act as natural sponges, providing flood protéection and storm damage control and
faciltating groundwater recharge. They furmnish habitat for myriad plants and animals, including many
endangered species, and provide billions of dollars to the national economy each year from fisheries
and recseational activities such as hunting and bird watching.® Wetlands also perform a vital role in
maintaining water quality by trapping sediments and other pollutants before they reach strearns, rivers,
and other open-water bodies.” Other special aquatic sites, such as mud flats and vegetated shallows,
as well as opén bodies of waters such as rivers, fakes, and streams also provide important fnctions and
values.. Discharges of dredged or fill material into waters of the U/S. may result in destruction of, or
serious degradation fo such waters. Given the significant values provided by such waters; it is al] the
mare important to assess adequate penalties 1o deter future Section 404 violations and thereby help to
achieve the goal of the Clean Water Act to “restore and maintain the chemical, physical, and biological
integrity of the Nation’s waters,"™®

This policy sets forth how the Agency generally expects to determine an appropriate seitioment
penalty in CWA Section 404 cases. In some cases, the caleulation methedology set forth here may not
be appropriate, in whole or in part. In such cases, with the-advance approval of the Office of '
Enforcement and Compliance Assurance (“OECA”™), an altemative or modified appreach may be used.

A. Purpgse

This policy is intended to provide guidance to EPA staff in calculating an appropriate penalty
amount in' settlemenyt of civil judicial and administrative actions mvolving Section 404 viclations and

4 Sge 40 CF.R. 230.2(g-1) (Special aquatic sites include sanctuarics and refuges, wetlands, mudflats,
vegelntive shaflows, coral reefs and riffle and pool complaxes).

% See g.g., U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service: Reportto Congress: Wettands Losses in the United States [780%
10 1980's (19903,

$ See g, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service: Wetlands of the United States: Current Status and Recent Trends
(1984).

T sgeegp., WS, v. Deaton, 209 F.3d 331 (4% Cir 2000).

8 3301.8.C. 81251 (a).

Page 5 of 24



Complainant's Ex. 40

refated violations (c.g., failure to comply with a Section 308 request or a Section 309(a) order with
respect to such a violation). The guidance is designed to proniote a more consistent national approach
to assessing settlement penalty amounts, while allowing EPA staff flexibility in arriving at specific penalty
settiement amnounts in a given case. Subject to the circumstances of a particular case, this policy
provides the fowest penalty figure that the Federal Govermmient should acceptin settlement. The
Federal Government reserves the right to seek any amount up to the statitory maximum where
settlement is not possible, as well as where circumstances warrant application of a higher penalty than
what would be provided for under this setilement policy.

This policy is meant to accomplish the following four objectives in the asseésment of penalties
for Section 404 violations. First, penaltics should be large enough to deter noncompliance, both by the
violator and others similarly situated. Second, the penalties should help ensure a leve! playing field by
making certain that violawors do not obtain ani economic advantage over others who have complied in a
timely fashion. Third, penalties should generally be consistent across the country to promote fair and
cquitable freatment of the regulated community, .}?‘-_iml'i)-', sefttlement penalticsshould be based on a fuir
and logical caleulation methadology to promote expeditious resolution of Section 404 enforcement
actions and their underlying violations.

B. Applicability

This policy applies 1o all CWA Section 404 civil judicial and administrative actions filed after
the sipnature date of the policy, and 1o all such pending cases in which the government has not yet
transmitted to the defendant or respondent a proposed settlement penalty amount. This policy revises
and hereby supersedes the December 14, 1990 Guidance, “Clean Water Act Section 404 Civil
Administrative Penalty Actions: Guidance on Caleulating Settlement Amounts,”  Except as provided in
Section 11 below, this policy is not intended for use by EPA, violators, administrative judges ot courts in
determining penalties at hearing or trial. This policy does not affect the discretion of Agency
enforcement staff to request any amount up to the satutory maxinum allowed by law.® Finally, this
policy does not apply to criminal cases that may be brought for the unauthorized discharge of dredged
ot fill material in violation of the CWA.

? Beeause of the requirements of 40 C.F.R, §22.14(a) (4), administrative complatnts fHiled under Past 22 must
have cither Ihe amounnt of the eivil penalty thal the Agency is propusing to assess, and a drief explanation of the
proposed penaliy, or where o specifie pemalty demand s not raade, a brief explanation of the severiiy of each
violalion allsged and a citation o the statuiory penalty authority in Section 209(g}(3) appticable lor each vioiation
alleged in the complaint, Regional e¢nforecement siaff should follow the guidance provided on this subjeet in
“Guidance on the Distinetions Among Pleading, Negotialing and Lhigatiag Civil Penaltics for Bnforcement Cases
Under the Clean Water Act," ssued January 19, 1989, and in “interim Guidance on Administrative and Civil Judicial
Enforcement Fallowing Recent Amendments to the Equal Access to Justice Act,” issued May 28, 1996,

4.
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Complainant’'s Ex. 40

C. Statutory Authorities

The Clean Water Act provides EPA with various enforcement mechanisms for
responding to violations of Sections 301(a) and 404 for discharging without, or in violation of, a Section
404 permit. Under Section 309%(a), the Agency is authorized to issue an administrative compliance
order (AQ) requiring a violator t¢ cease an ongoing unauthorized discharge, to refrain fom future illegal
discharge activity, and to remove unauthorized fill and/or otherwise restore the site. Section 309(g) of
the Act authorizes EPA. to assess administrative penaltics for, among other things, discharging dredged
or fill matenial into waters of the United States without a Section 404 permut or in violation of a Section
404 permit. Section 309(g) establishes two classes of administrative penalties, which differ with
respect to procedure and maximum assessment, for such violations. A Class 1 penalty, provided for
under Section 309(g)(2)(A), may not exceed $11,000 per violation, or a maximum ameunt of $27,500.
A Class {1 penalty under Section 309(g)}2)(B) may not exceed $11,000 per day for each duy during
which the viclation continues, or a maximwm amount of $137,500.19

EPA may also seck infunctive relief, criminal penalties (fines andfor timprisonment), and civil
penalties through judicial action under CWA Sections 309(b), (¢} and (d}, respectively, Under these
provisions, the Agency may refer cases to the Department of Justice (DOQJ) for civil and/or eriminal
enforcement. Under Section 309(d), EPA may seek civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day per
violafion in the faderal district courts, for CWA violations including the unauthorized discharge of
dredged or fill material into walers of the United States, violation of a Section 404 permit, or viclation
of a Section 30%(a) administrative compliance order,

For purposes of calculating a penalty under Sections 309(d) or (g), a violation beging when
dredged or Sl muaterial is discharged e waters of the Unised States without 1 Section 404 permit and
continues to occur each day that the atlepal discharge remaing in place. 'With respect 1o a violation of a
Section 309(a) compliance order, & violation begins when the order is violated and continues each day
until the order is complied with.

19 The Civit Monetary Penaltics Inflation Adjustment Rule, 40 C,F.R. Part 19, issupd pursuant to the Federal
Civil Penslies Inflstion Adjustment Act o 1990 {28 TL.S.C. § 2461 note; Pub. L. 101-410, snacted Oclober §, 199¢; 104
Stal, 890}, a5 amended by the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996 {31 U.5,C, 3701 note: Public Law 104-134,
enacied April 26, 1996; 110 Stat. 1321}, mandates that EPA gdfjust its civil monelary peralties for inflation every four
years. Thug, the maximum penally figures cited in this guidance reflect the initial ten porecat increase from the
amounts set forth in the Act. For violations oecurring before January 3%, 1997, the maximumn penalty amounts the
Agency may seek are those specified inthe Act. The Agency is preparing ta issue a revision to the Civil Monetary
Adjustment Rule in the neer future. After the effective date of the ruie, the maximum penaltics avatlable are expeoted
ta be as fellows: for ¢ivil judicial penaluies under 309} - $30,500 per day per violation, for Class 1 administrative
penalties -5312,000 per day per violatian, 330,000 maximum; for Class 11 peneliies « SIZ_.D'OU per vinlation, $152,500
TaxIfnm,

-5
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Complainant's Ex. 40

D. Statutory and Settlement Penalty Factors

Section 309(d)of the CWA sets forth the following penalty factors that district court judges are
to use when determining an appropriate civil penalty: "the seriousness of the violation or violations, the
economic benefit (if any) resulting from the viokition, any bistary of sich violations, any good-faith
efforts to comply with the applicable requirements, the econontic impact of the penalty on the violator,
and such olher matters as justice may require.” 33 US.C. Section 1319(d).

Section 309{g)(3) addresses the factors to be considered when deteymining an appropriate
administrative penalty amount, 1€ states that the Agency “'shali take into account the nature,
circumstances, extent and gravity of the vielation, or violations, and, with regpect te the violator, ability
to pay, any prior history of such violations, the degree of culpability, economic benefit-or savings (if
any) reswdting from the violation, and such other matters as justice may require,” 33 U.5.C. Section
1319(g)(3).

The penalty assessment factors in Sectiong 309(d) and 309(g) are substantively the same, and
not in conflict. The references in Section 30%(d) to "good faith efforts" and in Section 309(g)(3) to
"culpability,” for example, although oriented to different types of behavior, both measure the non-
compliant conduct of the violator. Other factors, such as econormic benefit, history of violations, and
such other matters as justice may reguire, are essentially identical, and the remaining factors are just
restatements of each other. Consequently, the penalty calculation methodology drawn from the
statulory factors and set forth below can be applied to both administrative and judicial civil enforcement
cases,

E. Chaice of Forum

The application of this penalty settlement policy, through the caleulation of an appropriate
bottom-line penalty amount, is one factor for Agency personnel to consider when choosing an
appropriate forum.!’ The case development team'? should apply this policy to help determine whether
to seek a penalty administratively or judicially, 1f the bottom-line penalty calculated under this policy
exceeds the maximum penalty that can be achieved in an administrative proceeding, EPA should refer
the matter to the Department of Justice for judicial enforcernent.”® Cases should also be referred to

1 OECA intends to issue additional guidance in the near future on determining the APPrORRALe response
for Section 404 viclations.

12 Far purposes of ihis guidance, the case development team refers (o the Agency 404 technical and Tegal
s:aff responsible for developing and pursuing & panicular sdministrative or judicial enforcement action,

*? For further guidance on choasing between administrative and judicial enforcement aplions, see
"Guidanee on Choosing Among Clean Water Act Adminisirative, C‘ivi_l and _Crim]"n:t! Enforcement Remedies,"
{August 28, 19873, which was attachment 2 to the August 28, 1987 “Gaidunce Documents and Delegations for
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Complainant's Ex, 40

D) where court ordered injumctive relief is necessary te remedy. a violation, or where the violator has
failed to conyply with an administrative corapliance order or consent order.

I,  ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY PLEADING GUIDANCE

In complaints filed in civil judicial cases, the United States’ general practice is not to request a
specific proposed penalty, but instead 10 paraphrase the Clean Water. Act in reciting a request for a
penalty “up 10" the statutory maximum. This is sometimes refefred to as ‘“‘notce pleading” for penalties.
In contrast, in administrative complaints the Agency may use either a form of netice pleading or make a
specific penalty request. See 40 C.F.R. 22,14(a)(4) (64 Fed. Reg. 40138, 40181 (July 23, 1999)).
When including & specific penalty request in an administrative complaint, the Agency litigation team may
elect to adapt the settlement methodology in Part 111 of this policy (Minimuws Settlement Penalty
Caleulation) to establish & definitive penalty request in an administrative complaint, "

In using Part 1] of thig policy to establish a specific penalty request in an administrative
complaint, the litigation team should, after reasonable examination of the relevant facts and
circumstances of the case (including any known defenses), make the most favorable factual
assumptions, legal arguments, and judgments possibie on behalf of the Agency. Because the specific
penalty amouni proposed in-an administrative complaint will, for all practical purposes, be the most the
Agency will be able to seek at a hearing (unless the complaint is subsequently amended) and will
provide a starting point for settlement negotiations, such an administrative penalty request should be
higher than the bottom-line settlement penalty amount calculated under Part 11T of this policy. Although
appropriate for settlement caleulations, the Adjustments in Part IHL.C. should not be applied to reduce
the specific penalty amount requesied in an administrative complaint,

The proposed administrative penaity amount should be consistent with the statutory factors
identified in Section 309(g), because those factors would ultimately pravide the basis for the penalty
assessment of the presiding officer or administvative law judge.” In any Class Il administrative
complaint under Section 309(g)(2)(B), the Agency litigation team should take into aceount the
requirements of the Small Business Regulatary Enforcerent Faimess Act ('SBREFA™), P.L. 104-121
(1996}, if the respondent qualifies as a small business under that statute, SBREFA by its termns does

Implementation of Administrative Penally Authorities Contained it 1987 Clean Waler Act Amendments.”

Y4 Althoughthis policy provides general guidelines on how EPA may select an sppropriste penalty
amount in an administrative complaint, it does not direct when an Agency litigetion 1eam should use penaliy notice
pleading and when it shorld plead for a sum certain,

Y5 In administrative cases under Part 22, the Ageney is required 1o provide “[t}he amount of the civil
penally which is proposed and a brief explanation of the proposed penaliy.” 40 CLF.R. §22.14{a)(4)(i). In contrast, a
settlemenl figure caleulated under this pelicy and its supporling documentation are ppt subjeet to such disclosure
requiremenss,

R
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not apply fo hon-Administrative Procedures Act (“non-APA”) cases, and thus would not apply to
{Class I cases brought under Section 309(){(2}B)."

11, MINIMUM SETTLEMENT PENALTY CALCULATION

The case development team shall caleulate the minimum settfement penalty for a Section 404
enforcement action consistent with.the following formula (set forth in more detail in Attachment 1), and
the factors deseribed in this section:

Penalty = Economic Benefit + {(Preliminary Gravity Amount +/- Gravity Adjustment
Factors) - Litigation Considerations - Ability to Pay - Mitigation Credi¢ for SEPs

The result of this caloufation will be the minimum penalty amount that the government will accept in
settlement of the case, in other words, the “bottom-line penalty” amount. As new or belter information
is obtained in the course of [igatioi or settlement negotiations, or if protracted litigation or settlement
discussions unduwly extend the final compliance date and/or the penalty payment date, the “bottom-ling”
penalty should be adjusted, either upwards or downwards as necessary, consistent with the factors laid
out in this policy, and subject to Headguarters concurrence in appropriate cases. Each component of
the penalty is discussed below. The results of these calculations should be documented as dollar
amounts on the "Worksheet for Calculating Section 404 Settlement Penalty," included as Appendix A.
This caleutation should be supported by & memorandum describing the rationale and basis for the data.
As a general matter, the Agency should always seek a penalty that, at a minimum, recovers the
sconomic benefit of noncompliance plus some amount reflectng the gravity of the vielation.

A. Determining the Econemic Bengfit Component

Consistent with EPA’s February 1984 Policy on Civil Penalties, every effort should be made
to caleulate and recover the economic benefit of noncompliance.!” Persons who violate the CWA by
discharging dredged and/or ill material without Section 404 permit authorization or in violation ofa
pemuit may have obtained an economic benefit by obtaming an illegal competitive advantage (“ICA”),
oras the result of delayed or avoided costs, or by a combination of these or other factors. Taking into
account JCA may be paricularly appropriate iny situations where on-site restoration is not feasible (e.g.,
where restoration would result in greater environmental damage), and a permit. would not likely have
been issued for the project in question, Tn such cases, the Agency may consider recovering the
commercial pain the violator realized fiom itlegally filling in the wetland or other water, The objective of

1¢ Fara more extended diseussion af SBREFA, gee “Interim Guidance on Administrative and Cuovil Judicial
Enforcement Following Recenl Amendments to ihe BEquul Access 1o Justice Ac” {May 38, 1996}

17 gee Policy on Civil Penaisies, February 16, 1984, a1 3,

8
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calculating and recovering economic benetit is to place violators in no better financial position than they
would have been had they complied with the law,

The BEN computer model should be used to ealeukite the gronomic benefil gained from
delayed or avoided comphiance costs.'® Economic benefit should be calculated from the date of the
initia) violation, (i.e., the date of the initial discharge of dredged or fill material). As 2 general rule, there
should be no offset in apn economic benefit calculation, in a delayed or avoided cost scenario, for costs
the violator incurs as a result of undertaking the illegal activity (i-e., in the context of a 404 violation this
would be the amount the viokator spent to perform the orginal unauthorized dredging or filling activities),
sitce, as specified in the BEN User’s Manual, credit is only appropriate for cost savings that “are both
documented and related to compliance.??

Because & violator may have obtained more than one type of economic benefit from its
noncomphance, the case development team should ensure that the amount calculated represents the
tota] economic benefit wrongfilly obtained®® Examples of other types of economic benefit may
include delayed or avoided permitting fees and associated costs (e.g., information collection and
consultant fees), increased property values, profits from the temporary or permanent use of property,
or other illegal competitive advantage to the extent that the gain would not have accrued but for the
illegal discharge,”

B. Determination of the Gravity Component

% The BEN mode! is found on (he Agency's web site a1 blup:/iwww.epo.goviocealdalasys/dsm2, htmi
aleng with the BEN User’s Manual, EPA currently does not have an ¢conomic bercfit moedel for caleuluting
cconomic benefil from illega] competitive advantage. For further information on the use of the BEN model and
guidanee in its use, or for belp in calculsting 1CA, conlact the Financial Issues Heipline 21 (888) 326-6778. Sinccasa
genera’ rule alt 494 civil judicial cases are deemed nationelly significent, Headguarters and (he Regions will consult
on the appropriate determination of economic benefit in such cases. In administeative cases, when considering
under what circumstances various costs may offsst economic benefit, the Regions will need to consult with

Headquarters.,
1® BEN User’s Manual, (September 1899), at 3.11,

0 1 an initial caloulation of economic benefit vields a wero or negative result, the case development 1cam
should ensure that ali possible forms ol illegal competitive advantage have been aralyeed and inghaded if
appropriate. (Where the cconomic beaefit caleulation yields a negalive number, @ zero should be entered i the
minimum setllement penalty cateulation for the cconomic benefit compenent,)

21 Additional examples include gains gencraled from such uses as agricutture {e.g., prufiis from the sale of
craps), logging, aquucotivure, receipt of @ toan, rent ar lease payments, mining of sand and gravel, or from the carly
use of & recreational site {e.g., golf course or ski resort), which the violator gained prior lo ceasing eperation or
removing the unlawful discharge or otherwise restosing the property.

0
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Removal of the economic benefit of noncompliance generally places violators in the same
position they would have been in had they complied with the Act. Therefore, both deterrence and
fundamental faimess are served by including an additional element {o ensure that violators are
adequately penalized, #  The following gravity caleulation is based on a methodology that provides a
logical scherhe and uniform criteria to quantify the gravity component of the penalty based on the
environmenta] and compliance significance of the violation(s) in question.

Preliminary Gravity Ameount = (sum of A factors + sum of B factors) x M

M (Multiplier) = $500 for minor violations with low overall environmental and compliance significance,
£1,500 for violutions with moderate overall environmental and compliance significance, and $3,000-
$10,000% for major violations with a high degree of either environmental or compliance significance.
Given the highly fact specific nature of 404 cases, this policy provides broad ranges for the factors set
out below to afford the case development team broad discretion 1o assess the appropriate penalty in a
given circumstiance,

Factors Valug. Assigned
1. : n He 1 0-20

The case development team should consider whether the discharge of dredged or fll material
has adversely impacted drinking water supplies, has resulted in (or is expected to result in) flooding,
impaired cemmercial or spott fisheries or shellfish beds, or otherwise has adversely affected
recreational, acsthetic, and economic values. The case development team should also consider
whether the discharge has otherwise endangered the health or livelihood of persons by virtue of the
chemical nature of the discharge (i.e,, has the discharge resulted in a violation of any applicable toxic
effluent standard or prohibition under section 307 of the CWA, in the release of 4 hazardons substance
under 40 C.F.R. 117 or Subtitle C of RCRA,* or in an immyinent and substantial endangerment under
Section 504 of the Safe Drinking Water Act, Section 7003 of RCRA, or Section 106 of CERCLA)™

2% gsec Policy ow Civil Penalties, February 16, 1984, 4t 3.

23 Looking ot the totahity of the circymstances, the esse development team should use its best prolessional
jsdgment 1o decide whal amount 1o use ax a multiplier for a such violations, For egregious viotations with extreme
environmental consequences, a higher value in this range should bz used as a multiplier.

21 42US.C.§ 6973,

25 42 U.5.C. § 9606,

-10-
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The greater the actual or potential threat to human health or wetfare, the higher the value the case
development team should assign to tis factor, 1f the discharge has resulted i an imminent and
substantial enclangerment, the highest vaiue for this factor should be used.

2. Extent of Aquatic Environment Impacied 0-20

Although the size (acreage) of 4 violation is not dispositive of the environmental significance of
the violation (i.e., 2 small impact to a unique or eritical water may have high envirommental
significance), all other factors being equal, the greater the acieage of waters filled or directly impacted,
the higher the value the case development team should assign to this factor. Staff should consider how
farge the acreage impacted is in the case under consideration compared to other vielations observed
within the same watershed, regionally or nationally.

3. Severity of Impacts 10 the Aquatic Environment 0-20

The case development team should consider the overall impact of a defendant’s discharges (o
waters of the United States.”” Staff should also consider as part of this factor the extent to which the
discharge of dredged or fill material has caused {or has threatened to cause) adverse inpacts to, or
destruction of waters of the United States, including the extent fo which the discharge has impaired the
flow or cireulation or reduced the reach of waters of the United States, or has caused or contributed
to violations of any applicable water quality standard. Under this factor, the case development team
should also consider whether the violation has resulted in adverse impacts to life stages of aquatic life
and other wildlife dependent on aquatic ecosystems, or has adversely impacted or destroyed wildlife
habitat, including agquatic vegetation, waterfowl staging or nesting arcas, and fisheries, The greater the
risk of harm or actual impact to aquatic ecosystems, the higher the value the case development team
should assign to this factor. If a defendant’s vielation has resulted in harm to an endangered or
threatened species, or impacted endangered species habitat, or has otherwise significantly impacted
ecosystem di\-’cisigl, productivity, or stability, a value in the highest end of the range should be used.

The case development team should consider whether the affected ccosystem is nationally or
regionally limied, of a type that has become rare due to cumulative impacts (e.g., Poccosin, vernal
pools), or is relatively abundant. The more scarce the impacted ecosystem, the higher the valuc that

28 In aress where there has been 4 substantis) historic camulative loss of waters of the Uaited States. o in
arid areas where acreage of walers 18 a small portion ol the nalural landscape, a high value sheuld be assigned to
even small acreage fiils,

- . . ;
27 As part of this factor, the case development team should slso consider the temporury Joss of wetiandy

functions and values.
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staff should assign for this factor. Moreaver, if the discharge occurred into any of the following, the
case development team should generally assign a higher value to this factor: a site determined to be
unsuitable under 40 C.F.R. 230.80; an area identified as having a Section 404(c) prohibition or
restriction; a Section 303(d) impaired water; an area within the Ibow)daxy of an Advance Identification
of Disposal Areas (ADID); an outstanding natural rescurce water under a state anti-degradation
policy; arcas designated as federal, state, tribal, or local protected lands; or an area established as a
restored or enhanced wetland under an approved mitigation plan.

3. Secondary or Off-Site Impacts 0-20

The case development team should consider to what extent the discharges cavsed, or
threatened 1o cause, sceondary or off-site impacts such as erosion and downstream sedimentation
problems, nuisance species intrusion, wildlife conidor disruption, etc. The greater the amount of
secondary impacts, the higher the value that should be assigned,

6. Pumtion of Violation 0-20

The case development team should consider the duration of the violation under this factor,
Consideration should be given both to the length of time that the discharge activity occurred in waters
ofthe U.S,, and the length of time that dredged or fill material has remained in place in such waters.
Generally, the longer the duration of the initial discharge activity, and/or the longer dredged or fill
material has remained in place compared to other violations in the same watershed, regionally or
nationally, the higher the value that should be assigned to this factor.

1t is possible in some wetlands cases. for a violator to undo, or largely undo, the continuing
environmental hann resulting from violations -- although past loss of functions and values cannot he
restored. In cases in which the original wetland or other water is restored, or will be restored under an
enforceable agreement, Agency enforcement staff may reduce the amount determined from the
preliminary gravity ealeulation for Environmental Significance (i.e., by reducing the values assigned to
one or more of the Environmental Significance factors). This off$et should generally not be used in
cases where off-site mifigation is undertaken in fiew of on-site restoration of the violation.” Wherever
possible, the case development team should seek complete on-site restoration of the aquatic areas
impacted.® la determining the gravity amount for environmental significance, the case development

2% Where an after-the-fact has or will ke jasued for the discharge, the prelinuinary gravity amount may be
reduced where the foss of wulers is fully mitigated.

3 geevInjunctive Relizf Requiremerds in 404 Enforcement Actions” (September 29, 1999},

-12.
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team showld focus on the net impaimient of the wetlands or other waters after remediation is
completed, rather than on the costs of the remediation to the violator. In addition, even where
complete restoration oceurs, the temporary loss of functions and values should still be considered in
determining the Environmental Significance amount, unless those termporary losses have alieady been
fully mitigated. Stafl should also consider whether there is a risk that restoration may fail or be less
than fully successtul over ume, when considering whether a reduction should be made for this factor.

L. Degree of Culpabili I-20

The case development team should evaluate the overall culpability of the defendant (ie., the
degree of negligence, reeklessness, intent or responsibility involved in committing the violation). The
greater the degree of cuipability, the higher the value that should be assigned to this factor® The
principal criteria for assessing culpability are the violator's previons experience with or knowledge of
the Section 404 regulatory requirements, the degree of the violator's control over the illegal conduct,
and the violator's motivation for underfaking the activity resulting in the violation,

The criterion for assessing the violator's experience with or knowledge of the Section 404
program is whether the violator kiiew or.should have known of the need to obtain & Section 404
permit or of the adverse environniental consequenees of the discharge prior to proceeding with the
discharge activity, The greater the violator's knowledge of, experience with, and capability to
understand the Section 404 regulatory requirements, and the greater the viclator's ability to avoid the
illegal conduct, the greater the culpability, Examples of circumstances demonstrating greater culpability
include previcus receipt of a Section 404 autharization or a prior independent opinion of the need for a
pennit or of perrnit requirements. In such circumstances, a value in the highest end of the range should
be used,

With regard 10 the violator's control aver the untawful conduct, there may be some situations
where the violator bears less than full responsibility or may share the lability for the occwrence of a
violation. The case development team shounld assess the degree of culpability of each violator with
respect to the violations in question.

37 The case development team should separately consider the viokator's “recalcitrance® as speeified in the
“Additional Adjustments o Graviiy" scelion below, and should adjust the penahy accordingty based on the level of
recaleilrance present {i.€., the vielators refusal or unjustified delay in preventing, mitigaring, or remedying a vielation
or in otherwise failing to cooperate).

213
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Finally, the motivation for the violation may be a factor evidencing greater culpability. If the
violator has sought to obtain a windfall profit by destroying waters of the U.S. (e.g., by converting
wetlands 1o uplands) through conscions or negligent disregard of the Section 404 permitting program,
culpability should be considered high even though the violator will not int fact realize those profits and
may have had little previous experience with the Section 404 program.

“omplhiance Historv o ‘lalat 0-20

The case development team should consider whether the defendant has & history of prior
Section 404 violations including unpermitted discharge violations, permit violations, or a previeus
violation of a1r EPA administrative otrder. The greater the number of past violations and the more
significant the violations were, the higher the value that should be assigned to this factor. The earlier
violations need not relate to the same site as the present action. Pnor history information may be
obtained not only from EPA experience with the violator, but also from appropriate Corps Districts,
other federal agencies’ knowledge and records, and the viclator’s responses to Section 308 requests
for information.

3. Need for PDeterrenge: 0-20

The case development team should consider the need to send a specific and/or general
deterrence message for the violations at issue. StafT should consider the extent to which the violator
appears likely to repeat the types of violations at issue and the prevalence of this type of violation in
the regulated community. The greater the apparent likelibood of the vielator to repeat the violation, or
the more prevalent the violation at issue in the general commwnity, the greater the need for a strong
detetrent message and the higher the value that should be assigned to this factor.

ADDITIONAL ADJUSTMENIS 10O GRAVITY

After establishing the preliminary gravity amount above, the case development team may
adjust this amount 10 reflect the recaleitrance of the violator and other relevant aspects of the case as
provided for below. In addition to the gravity adjustments discussed below, there may be siations
where the gravity component may also be adjusted under EPA’s Audit Policy.”’

% 8eg “Incentives {or Seif-Policing: Distavery, Disclasure, Correction and Prevention of Vielations™ 63
Fed, Reg. 19615 {April 11, 2000},

-14-



Complainant's Ex, 40

Recalcitrance Adjustment Factor: The “recalcitrance” adjustment factor may be used to increase™
the penalty based on a violator’s bad faith, or unjusificd delay in preventing, mitigating, or remedying
the violation in question. As distinguished from culpability, which relates to the violator’s level of
knowledge of the regulatory program and responsibility for a given violation, recalcitrance under this
policy relates to the violator's delay or refusal to comply with the law, to cease vilating, to correct
violations, or to otherwise cooperate with regulators once specific notice has been given andfor a
violation has occurred. If a violator is, or has been, recalcitrant, the case development team may
increase the penalty settlement amount accordingly. This factor applies, for example, to a person who
continues violating afier having been informed of his violation, fails 1o provide requested information, or
physically threatens povernment persommel. f the defiendant has violated either an Army Corps of
Engineers’ cease and desist order-or an EPA administrative order, or failed to respond 1o an EPA
Section 308 information request, staff may account for this violation by using this factor.”® The more
serious the bad faith demonstrated or unjustified delay engendered by the violator, the higher the
recalcitrance acfjustment should be. Applying the recalcitrance factor may result in-a recaleitrance
gravity adjustment of up to 200 percent (200%) of the preliminary gravity amourd, This factor is
applied by multiplying the total preliminary gravity amount by a percentage between  and 200.

Quick Settlernent Adjustment Factor: In order to provide an extra incentive for violators who
mmake efforts to achieve an efficient and timely resolution of violations, and in recognition of a viclawr's
couperativeness, EPA may reduce the preliminary gravity amount by 10 percent (16%) in
administrative enforcement actions. This factor may only be applied if the case developrment team
expects the violator to settle promptly and if the violation(s) at issue have or will be fully remediated.
As a general mule, for purposes of this penalty reduction, in Class [ administrabive enforcement actions,
a "quick setflement” is one in which the violator signs an administrative penalty order on consent within
four months of the date the complaint was issued or within four months of when the government first
sent the violator a writien offer of settlement, whichever is earlier, For Class I administrative cases
the controlling time period is six months, If the violator does not sign the administrative consent
agreement within this time period, the adjustment generally should not be made available, If this
reduction has been taken but the vielator fails to settle quickly, this reduction should be withdrawn and
the settlement penalty increased accordingly,

32 Onice 4 violator has been informed of & viclation, a prompt return o camplianes is the minimun response
expected, therefore, no downward adjustiment js provided for by this policy for cfforts made to come into compliance
after being informed of a vielation. (As dissussed abave, o prompt restoration of the violation would be & basis for
Towering the gravily amount by reducing the Environmental Significance of the violation). Where a violator has
made Ygood faith efforis to comply with the applicablie requirement” prior 1o being given notice of Ihe violation by
i government, see Section 309(d), this fact may be laken into account by providing a tower vatue Jor the “Depree
of Culpahility™ factar.

33 In the alernative, a separate gravity calealztion may be prrformed for such vintations.

-15-
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Qther Factors as Justice May Require: This consideration encompasses factors that operale o
reduce a penalty settlerhent amount, as well as factors that operate to increase a penalty settlernent
amount, Not every relevant circumstance can be anticipated ahead of time. An example of a
mitigating factor is a circumstance where a violator has already paid a civil penalty for the same.
violations at issue in a case brought by another plaintiff, These costs may be considered when
determining the appropriate penalty settlement.™ Of course, the remaining settlement figure should be
of a sufficient level to promote deterrence. Litigation considerations should not be double counted
here. '

C. Additional Reductions for Settlements

Inability to Pay: I the violator has raised the issue of inability to pay the proposed penalty, the
Region should request whatever documentation is needed to ascertain the violator's financial
condition.® Any statemients of financial condition should be appropriately certified ® T order to
promote settlement, EPA personnel should emplay the Agency’s ability to pay computer programs:
ABEL, INDIPAY and MUNIPAY.*” ABEL analyzes ability to pay claims from corporations and
partnerships; INDIPAY analyzes claims from individuals; and MUNIPAY analyzes such claims fiom
municipalities, towns, sewer authorities and drinking water autharitics. Where the violations are
egregious, or the violator refuses to comply with the law, the team may consider a bottom line that
could affect the economic viability of the violator.

4 1f the defendant has previously paid civil pepalties for the same violations to another plaintiff, this factor
may be used io reduce the amownt of the seiticment penalty by no more 1han the amount previousty paid for Lhe
same viotations.

% For a discussion of what financinl documents the Agency showid seek, see Guidanes on Determining 4
Miolglor's Ability 1o Pav & Civil Penalty, December 16, 1986, codificd as General Enforeement Poticy Compendium

doeument F'T.2-1. For further guidance on this issue and model interrogatories, eoniact the Financial Issues
Helpline al (8883 3248-6778.

38 E.g., tax returns must be signed, and as a precaution, the litigmion team should bave the
defendant/respondent fill out IRS form 8821, which authorizes the TRS 1o release tax information directly o the BPA.
In that way, the Agency can verify the infermation in the tax retnrns.

37 These models are available on the Ageney's web site at hup://www epa.govioeesfdatasys/dsm2. himl,
Beeause ABEL, MUNIPAY, and INDIPAY are limited in their approach, many entities (hat fail the analyais may still
be able to afTord to achieve fult compliance and pay the entire penally. Therefore, it is essentisl to examine the
vialalor's other potential resources, such as from lquidation of certificates ol depaosit and money markel funds,
before reducing a botlom line penalty for inability 10 pay. Tt is recommended thal a financial analyst/ccoromist bo
contacied to review financial information to delermine if a violator iraly has an inability 1o pay a penaity, For furifier
puidance in this area, contact the Agency's Financial 1ssues Heipline at (888) 326-6774.
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Litigation Considerations : Certain enforcement cases may have mitigating factors that could be
expected to persuade a court to assess a lower penalty amount. The simple existence of weaknesses
or limitations in a case, however, should not automatically result-ina itigation consideration reduction
of the bottom Iine settlement penalty amount.® EPA may reduce the amount of the civil penalty it will
accept at seitlement to reflect weaknesses in its case where the facts detnonstrate a substantial
likelihood the government will not achieve a higher penalty at trial.

Adjustments for litigation considerations may be taken on a factual basis specific to the case.
Before a complaint is filed, the application of certain litigation considerations niay be premature, as the
Agency may not have sufficient information to fully evaluate litigation risk including evidentiary matters,
witness availability, and equitable deferises. Reductions for these Litigation considerations are more
likely to be appropriate after the Agenicy obtains an informed view, through discovery and setilement
negotiations, of the strengths and weaknesses in its case. Pre-filing settlement negotiations are often
belpful in identifyring and evaluating litigation congiderations, especially regarding. potential equitable
defenses, and thus reductions based on such litigation considerations may be appropriately taken
before the complaint is filed.

Possible Litigation Considerations: While there is no universal list of litigation considerations, the
following factors may be appropriate in evaluating whether the preliminary settlernent penalty exceeds
the penalty the Agency would likely obtain at trial:

. Troublesome facts and/er uncertain legal arguments such that the
Agency faces a significant risk of not prevailing in the case or obfaining

a nationally significant negative precedent at irial;

. Known problems with the reliability or admissibility of the
government’s evidence proving Hability or supporting a civil penalty,

. The credibility, weliability, and availability of withesses;*

*8 1n many situations, the circumstances of 4 partivular case are already accounted for in the penalty
caleulation, For example, the gravity calcuiation will be Jess in those vircumstances in which the period of violation
was brief, the exceedances of the Lmitations were small, the pol'lut:mts were not toxic, or there is no evidence of
environmental harm. The economic benefil caleulation will also be smaller when the violator has already returned to
compliance, because the period of violation will be shorter. Such mitigating circumstances should not be doubie

counted as reductions for litigalion considerations,

B The eredibility and religbility of wilnesses relates Lo their demeaner, repulation, trudhfuiness, and

impeachability. For instance, ifa governmen witness has made stalements signilicantly contradiclory to the
pasition he it (o support at trial, his eredibiiity may be impeached by the respondent or the defendant. The
svailability of a witness will affect the settlemaent battom-line if the wilress canrot be produced at trial,

-17-
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. The informed, expressed opinion of the judge assigned to the case,
after evaluating the merits of the case;

. The record of the judge in any other environmental enforcement case
presenting similar issues;

° Statements made by federal, state or local regulators that may allow the
respondent or defendant to credibly acgue that it believed it was
complying with federal requirements;

v The development of new, relevant case law;
* Penattics awarded in the same judicial district in other Section 404
enforcement cases,

Not Litigation Considerations: In contrast to the above potential litigation considerations, the
following factors should not be considered litigation considerations:

» A generalized view to avoid litigation or to avoid potential precedential areas of the
law:A¢
. A duplicative use of elements included or assumed clsewhere in the penalty policy,

such as inability to pay, “good faith™!, lack of recalcitrance, or a lack of demonstrated
gnvironmental harmn;

» Off-the-record statements by the court, before it has had a chance to evaluate the
specific merits of the case;

40 A generalized desire 1o minimixe litigation costs is not a litigation consideration.

41 The effonis of the violator to achieve compliance or minimize the vialations after LPA or a steie has
initiased an enforcement aclion do not constitute “good faith"” efforts, Tf such efforts are underaken before the
regulajory agency initistes an enforcement response, the setilement penalty caleulation alseady includes such
eflorts, This penalty policy assumes ali members ol the regulated community will make good fafth effors to both

achieve compliance and remedy violations when they occur, See¢ also in. 32,
#2 Courts have considered the extent of envirenmental harm asseeiated with vialations in determining the
“seriousness of viclations” pursuant to the faciors in Sectien 309(d), and have used the absence of any

demonstrated or diserete identified envivonmental harm to impose less than the statuiory maximum penally. Proofo
envitonmenial harm, however, is neither necessary for Hability nor for the assessment of penaliies,

-18-
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’ The fact that the water of the Utiited States it question is already polluted or that the
water can assimilate additional pollution.®

** Ses, 8.9 Nalurel Resources Defense Council v, Texaco Refining and Mitg., §00 F. Supp. 1, 24 {I. Del,

19932),
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IV, SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS

Supplemental Environmental Projects (*SEPs”) are defined by EPA as environmentally
heneficia) projects that a violator agrees to undertake as part of a settlement, but is not otherwise
legally obligated to perform. Favorable penalty consideration is given because the SEP provides an
environmental benefit above and beyond what is required to remedy the violation{s) at issue in the
enforcement action. In determining whether a proposed SEP is acceptable under Ageney policy, as
well as the appropriate penalty offset for a SEP, Agency enforcement staff should refer 1o the “EPA
Supplemental Projects Policy,”™* Use of SEPs in a particular case is entirely within the discretion of
EPA in administrative cases, and EPA and the Department of Justice In judicial cases.  In determining
the real cost of a SEP to a violator, the Hiigation team should usc the PROJECT model, ¥

SEPs are particidtasly encouraged in the Section 404 program if the SEP results in protection
of & wetland resource or other special aquatic site. For example, purchase and dedicated use of
buffer Iand around a wetland helps ensure the survival of wetland sescurces, and is an.appropriate and
valuable SEP, as is upland land acquisition lying in wetland mosaics. In addition, deeding over
wetlands i perpetuity for the purpose of conservation promiotes program interests and the goals of the
Clean Water Act. It should be noted that restoration of any area of the violation, or any mitigation in
the form of injunctive relief to remedy such violations (including mitigation for the temporal loss of
wellands functions and values), does not constitute a SEP.

V. DOCUMENTATION, APPROVALS, AND CONFIDENTIALITY

Fach component of the minimum settlement penalty caleulation (ncluding all adjustments), as
well as subsequent recalculations, should be clearly documented in the case file along with supporting
materials and written explanations, In any case not otherwise subject to Headguarters concurrence, in
which a settfement penalty in a Section 404 enforcement action may not comply with the provisions of
this policy or where application of this policy appears inappropriate, the penalty must be approved in
advance by Headquarters.

Except as provided 1 Section 11, documentation and explanation of a particular penalty
calculation constitute confidential information that is exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of

¥4 gep “Issuance of Final Supplemental Environmental Projects Policy,” Memorandam ltom Steven A.
Herman ta Regional Admindstraters (Aprit 10, 1998). This policy is also available on the Toternet ats
hhip/lwww.epa.govioeea/sep/sepfinal atml.

as This model is very similar to the BEN computer maodel, and like the other models, it is available on the
Agency’s web site al hitp:/fwww.epa.goviocea/datasys/dsm2 Iuml. Far further information on lhe medel and
guidance in its use, contact the Financial 15sues Helpline a1 (888) 326-6778,

220
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Information Act, is outside the scope of discovery, and is protected by various privileges, including the
attomey-client and attorey-work product privileges. While individual settlement penalty calculations
under this policy are confidential documents, this policy is a public document that may be released to
anyone upon request, In the conduct of settlement negotiations, the Agency may choose to release
portions of the case-specific settfement calculations. Such information may only be used for settlement
negotiations in the case at hand and may not be admitted into evidence in a trial or hearing, as
provided by Rule 408 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

2.
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ATYACHMENT 1 TO CWA SECTION 404 SETTLEMENT
POLICY

Case Name Date

Prepared by

SETTLEMENT PENALTY CALCULATION WORKSHEET

STEP AMOUNT

1. Calculate the Economic Benefit (atiach BEN printouts, and provide written
explanation of calculations)

o]

Calculate the Prelimmary Gravity Amount
(sum of A+ B factors) x M

3. Additional Gravity Adjustments

a. Recalcitrance (add O to 200% x line 2)

b. Quick Settlement Reduction {subtract 10% x line 2)

¢. Other Factors as Justice May Require

d. Total gravity adjustinents {negative amount if net gravity reduction) (3.2 4
Jb+3.¢)

4, Preliminary Penalty Amount (Lines 1 +2 + 3d.)

5. Litigation Considerations (if any)

6. Ability ta Pay Reduction (if any)

7. Reduction for SEPs (if any)

B, Rottom-Line Cash Settlement Penalty (Line 4 fess lines 5, 0, and 7)
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